
From: Burns, Robert J.
To: David L. Eaton
Cc: Assistant Secretary for Health (HHS/OASH); Levine, Rachel (HHS/OASH); NIH Executive Secretariat; Tabak,

Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]; Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E]
Subject: [EXTERNAL] NTP Monograph on Fluoride and Neurodevelopmental and Cognitive Health Effects
Date: Tuesday, September 20, 2022 5:23:14 PM
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Hi, Dr. Eaton. Please find the attached comments to the NIEHS panel reviewing the NTP Monograph on
the State of the Science Concerning Fluoride Exposure and Neurodevelopmental and Cognitive Health
Effects: A Systematic Review. We hope the panel will find these comments helpful when evaluating
whether NTP adequately responded to outside criticisms, and developing recommendations for whether
and how the report should move forward.
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. Many thanks.
-Bob

Senior Manager, Strategic Advocacy and Public Policy
Government and Public Affairs

 | 
________________________________________________________________________

 211 E. Chicago Ave. Chicago, IL 60611 www.ada.org
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From: Webster-Cyriaque, Jennifer (NIH/NIDCR) [E]
To: Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]; Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]; D"Souza, Rena (NIH/NIDCR) [E]
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] NTP Monograph on Fluoride and Neurodevelopmental and Cognitive Health Effects
Date: Tuesday, September 20, 2022 3:01:15 PM

Thanks for providing this.
Best,
Jennifer

From: Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E] <  
Sent: Tuesday, September 20, 2022 12:35 PM
To: Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E] <  D'Souza, Rena (NIH/NIDCR) [E]
< ; Webster-Cyriaque, Jennifer (NIH/NIDCR) [E] 

>
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] NTP Monograph on Fluoride and Neurodevelopmental and Cognitive
Health Effects
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"Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]" <  "Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E]"
<
Subject: [EXTERNAL] NTP Monograph on Fluoride and Neurodevelopmental and Cognitive
Health Effects
Hi, Dr. Caron. Please find the attached comments to the NIEHS panel reviewing the 

. We hope the panel will find these comments helpful when evaluating
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
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(HHS/OASH)" <  NIH Executive Secretariat
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<
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Cognitive Health Effects
Hi, Dr. Caron. Please find the attached comments to the NIEHS panel reviewing the 

. We hope the
panel will find these comments helpful when evaluating whether NTP adequately
responded to outside criticisms, and developing recommendations for whether and how the
report should move forward.
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. Many thanks.
-Bob

Senior Manager, Strategic Advocacy and Public Policy
Government and Public Affairs
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September 20, 2022 

Kathleen M. Caron, Ph.D.
Chair, Board of Scientific Counselors 
National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences 
c/o University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill 
111 Mason Farm Road 
5200 Medical Biomolecular Research Building 
Chapel Hill, NC  27599-7545 

Re: NTP Monograph on the State of the Science Concerning Fluoride Exposure and 
Neurodevelopmental and Cognitive Health Effects: A Systematic Review 

Dear Dr. Caron:  

On behalf of the 162,000 members of the American Dental Association (ADA), we would like 
to again share our concerns about the National Toxicology Program’s May 2022 report, 
titled

.

For the last several years, NTP has been examining the literature to determine whether 
there is a causal relationship between fluoride exposure and neurocognitive health. The 
NIEHS Board of Scientific Counselors has been asked to evaluate whether NTP adequately 
responded to outside criticisms. It has also been asked to recommend whether and how the 
report should move forward, based on its findings.  

A number of federal agencies and outside groups—including the National Academies of 
Sciences, Engineering and Medicine (NASEM); the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC); the National Institute of Dental and Craniofacial Research (NIDCR); the 
Food and Drug Administration (FDA); the ADA; and others—have expressed concerns 
about every version of this report, including the third (and purportedly final) version that was 
due for publication in May 2020.1

Enclosed is an analysis reiterating our concerns about NTP’s study evaluation methods, the 
weight given to certain studies, the rationale for publishing some content separately, the 
integrity of NTP’s peer review process, and the manner in which the findings are being 
communicated. Our concerns are consistent with those expressed by NASEM.2-3 We ask 
that our outstanding concerns be adequately addressed prior to the report’s publication.  

We are also concerned by the possibility, or perhaps the perception, that NTP’s report has 
not been driven by dispassionate scientific inquiry alone. For example, the NTP director who 
commissioned the report coauthored an editorial implying that the second draft—

—was an indictment of community water fluoridation.4

One of NASEM’s concerns was that the report might be used in such a way, despite its 
limitations. In fact, NASEM expressly stated the report “cannot be used to draw any 
conclusions” about low-level fluoride exposures “including those typically associated with 
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1 National Toxicology Program. May 2022 [Prepublication Draft]. NTP Monograph on the State of the 
Science Concerning Fluoride Exposure and Neurodevelopmental and Cognitive Health Effects: A 
Systematic Review. Office of Health Assessment and Translation, Division of the NTP, National Institute 
of Environmental Health Sciences, National Institutes of Health, U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services. 
2 National Academies of Sciences, Engineering, and Medicine. 2020. 

. Washington, DC: The National Academies Press. 
3 National Academies of Sciences, Engineering, and Medicine. 2021. 

: A Letter Report. Washington, DC: The National Academies Press.  
4 Lanphear B, Tilland C, Birnbaum LS.  Op-ed: It is time to protect kids’ developing brains from fluoride. 

. Oct 07, 2020. https://www.ehn.org/fluoride-and-childrens-health-
2648120286/costs-outweigh-benefits (Accessed August 22, 2022) 
5 Fluoride Action Network (August 6, 2020). TSCA Fluoride Trial Witnesses Spotlight [PSA]. 
https://fluoridealert.org/articles/tsca-fluoride-trial-witness-spotlight/ 
6 Fluoride Action Network (October 7, 2020). Former Director of NIEHS Warns Of Neurotoxic Harm From 
Water Fluoridation [Blog]. https://fluoridealert.org/articles/little-things-matter-fluoride-brain/
7 Quackwatch (April 9, 2013). A Critical Look at Paul Connett and his Fluoride Action Network [Blog]. 
https://quackwatch.org/11ind/connett/ 
8 Healthy Debate (April 22, 2020). Fluoridation and the ‘sciency’ facts of critics [Blog]. 
https://healthydebate.ca/2020/06/topic/fluoridation-and-facts-of-critics/ 
9 Open Parachute (April 22, 2020). Author confirms anti-fluoridation activist misrepresentation of her work 
[Blog]. https://openparachute.wordpress.com/2020/04/22/author-confirms-anti-fluoridation-activist-
misrepresentation-of-her-work/ 
10 Food & Water Watch, Inc. et al v. Environmental Protection Agency et al (Docket No. 3:17-cv-02162) 
(N.D. Cal. filed Apr 18, 2017).  
11 80 FR 60692 (October 7, 2015).  
12 National Toxicology Program. (2015, December 1-2). 

. Research Triangle Park, NC: National Institute of Environmental 
Health Sciences. 
https://ntp.niehs.nih.gov/ntp/about_ntp/bsc/2015/december/bsc_dec2015_minutes_508.pdf. 
13 82 FR 11878 (February 27, 2017).  
14 The White House, Memorandum on Restoring Trust in Government Through Scientific Integrity and 
Evidence-Based Policymaking (January 27, 2021). 
15 Scientific Integrity Fast-Track Action Committee of the National Science and Technology Council, 
Protecting the integrity of Government Science, (January 2022). 

                                                 



on the

May 2022 ersion

NTP claims, This review finds, with moderate confidence, that higher fluoride e posure e.g., 
represented by populations whose total fluoride e posure appro imates or e ceeds the World 
Health rgani ation Guidelines for Drinking-water uality of 1.5 mg L of fluoride  is consistently 
associated with lower I  in children.

NTP s claim is based on 19 publications it deems to have a low risk of bias. Eighteen reported 
an association between higher fluoride e posure and lower I  in children  one did not. The 18 
publications that reported an association, which include three prospective cohort studies and 15 
cross-sectional studies, were conducted in 6 countries outside the nited States Bra il, 
Canada, China, India, Iran, and Me ico .

Since there is no compelling scientific or public health reason for rushing the report to 
publication, we urge the panel to

ecommend that NTP adhere to the standard practice of including its meta-analysis in 
the report instead of publishing it separately on a date to be determined. 

ecommend that NTP downgrade or upgrade the studies referenced, based on the 
findings in this analysis. The rationale for downgrading or upgrading each study s bias 
rating is provided in Table 1 downgrading  and Table 2 upgrading . 

ecommend that the report not be published until NTP fully resolves, to their 
satisfaction, the concerns of NASEM, CDC, NIDC , and DA, and perhaps consult the 
National Institute of Child Health and Human Development. 

ecommend that NTP clearly state throughout the report that while it recommends 
further research in this area, the recommendation is not nor should it be construed 
as an indictment of community water fluoridation at levels recommended by the .S. 
Public Health Service and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.  

ecommend that any and all references to the ha ard conclusions in previous drafts be 
accompanied by a conte tual statement e plaining why those ha ard conclusions were 
withdrawn.  

It is standard practice for a report of this kind to include a meta-analysis. However, NTP did not 
perform a meta-analysis prior to submitting its first draft for peer review. 
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In its peer review of the first draft1, NASEM wrote, The committee notes that NTP did not 
conduct a meta-analysis. Given that meta-analysis is a useful tool for aggregating and 
summari ing data and analy ing comparable studies, the committee strongly recommends that 
NTP reconsider its decision not to perform one. 2  

At NASEM s urging, NTP performed a meta-analysis and included it in its second draft.
NASEM took issue with the meta-analysis, however, writing in its second peer review, NTP 
should e amine the studies included in the meta-analysis in greater depth to determine whether 
each study properly accounted for its design because not doing so could invalidate the meta-
analysis results... The committee strongly recommends that NTP improve the revised 
monograph by seriously considering the suggestions that are provided in this letter report to 
improve its clarity and transparency.

It is unclear whether NTP resolved NASEM s concerns about the meta-analysis because NTP 
abandoned NASEM s line of peer review. Instead, NTP has said, The meta-analysis conducted 
in association with this systematic review further informs this issue and will be published 
separately. 5  

We question why NTP is seeking to publish its meta-analysis separately when it is so interlinked 
with this report. There is no guarantee that it will survive a ournal s peer review or even that a 
ournal will accept it for publication. It already failed one peer review by NASEM and, based on 
our understanding, was not accepted for publication in .

urther, NTP left the door open to publishing the meta-analysis on its own without further peer 
review  or even not at all. The May 2022 version of the report implies that the report can stand 
on its own without a meta-analysis at all. NTP stated5

This state-of-the-science document does not include the meta-analysis of 
epidemiological studies or ha ard conclusions found in previous draft monographs  
however, it provides a comprehensive and current assessment of the scientific literature 
on fluoride as an important resource to inform safe and appropriate use.

Since there is no compelling scientific or public health reason to publish this report quickly, we 
ask that both the meta-analysis and response to NASEM be included in the final report. Both will 
add a level of transparency that is currently lacking. 

NTP failed to note that all 19 publications it graded as having a low risk of bias are all based on 
or are among  only 11 foundational studies whose 

in the body of evidence see Table 1 . 

Bashash M, Thomas D, Hu H, Martine -Mier EA, Sanche  BN, Basu N, Peterson E, 
Ettinger AS, Wright , hang  et al. 2017. Prenatal fluoride e posure and cognitive 
outcomes in Prepublication Draft - Interagency Deliberative Communication 8  children 
at  and 6-12 years of age in Me ico. Environ Health Perspect. 125 9 1-12. 
https doi.org 10.1289 ehp655 
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Choi AL, hang , Sun G, Bellinger DC, Wang , ang , Li S, heng , u , 
Grand ean P. 2015. Association of lifetime e posure to fluoride and cognitive functions in 
Chinese children  A pilot study. Neuroto icol Teratol. 7 96-101. 

Ding , Sun H, Han H, Wang W, i , Liu , Sun D. 2011. The relationships between low 
levels of urine fluoride on children s intelligence, dental fluorosis in endemic fluorosis 
areas in Hulunbuir, Inner Mongolia, China.  Ha ard Mater. 186 19 2-19 6. 

Green , Lanphear B, Hornung , lora D, Martine -Mier EA, Neufeld , Ayotte P, Muckle 
G, Till C.  2019. Association between maternal fluoride e posure during pregnancy and 
I  scores in offspring in Canada. AMA Pediatr.E1-E9. 

ocha-Amador D, Navarro ME, Carri ales L, Morales , Calderon . 2007. Decreased 
intelligence in children and e posure to fluoride and arsenic in drinking water. Cad 
Saude Publica. 2 Suppl S579-587. 

Sa ena S, Sahay A, Goel P. 2012. Effect of fluoride e posure on the intelligence of school 
children in Madhya Pradesh, India.  Neurosci ural Pract. 1 -1 9. 

Sera  B, Shahrabi M, Shadfar M, Ahmadi , allah adeh M, Eslamlu H , hara ifard M . 
2012. Effect of high water fluoride concentration on the intellectual development of 
children in Makoo, Iran.  Dent. 9 221-229. 

Soto-Barreras , Escalante- illalobos , Holguin-Loya B, Pere -Aguirre B, Nevare -
ascon A, Martine -Martine  E, Loyola- odrigue  P. 2019. Effect of fluoride in 

drinking water on dental caries and I  in children. luoride. 52 7 - 82. 

Sudhir M, Chandu GN, Prashant GM, Subba eddy . 2009. Effect of fluoride e posure 
on intelligence quotient I  among 1 -15 year old school children of known endemic 
area of fluorosis, Nalgonda District, Andhra Pradesh.  Indian Assoc Public Health Dent. 
2009 1 88-9 . 

Trivedi M, Sangai N, Patel , Payak M, yas S. 2012. Assessment of groundwater quality 
with special reference to fluoride and its impact on I  of schoolchildren in si  villages of 
the Mundra egion, achchh, Gu urat, India. luoride. 5 77- 8 . 

u , Chen , Li , Liu H, Hou C, eng , Cui , hao L, Li P, hou  et al. 2018. 
Threshold effects of moderately e cessive fluoride e posure on children s health  A 
potential association between dental fluorosis and loss of e cellent intelligence. Environ
Int. 118 116-12 . https doi.org 10.1016 .envint.2018.05.0 2 

or one study a pilot study of 51 children Choi, et. al 2015 the sample si e is too small to 
warrant a low risk of bias rating. Two prospective secondary analysis studies Bashash et al.
2017 and Green et al. 2019, use an invalid biomarker spot maternal urinary fluoride as a 
pro y for measuring fetal fluoride e posure. sing an invalid biomarker alone warrants a rating 
of low or no  confidence. 

Had Green et al. 2019 assessed the validity of this biomarker, they would have found that 
Thomas et al. 2016 reported lack of association between spot maternal urinary fluoride and 
maternal plasma fluoride in their multiple regression analysis. The Spearman coefficient was 
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0.29 in first trimester and -0.2  in third trimester. In fact, Thomas et al. 2016 found maternal 
plasma fluoride levels to be some 0 times lower than urinary fluoride levels. 

Eight of the 11 are cross-sectional studies of endemic fluorosis areas. Cross-sectional study 
design cannot rule out reverse causality in endemic fluorosis areas. As stated in Guth et al. 
2021  

It is possible that parents with higher I  read or inform themselves about the possible 
health ha ards to children, and therefore avoid fluoride e posure. In this case, high 
maternal parental intelligence which is correlated with children s I  would be causally 
linked to lower fluoride e posure rather than high fluoride e posure causing lower 
intelligence in children.

E cept for u et al. 2018, these studies also rely on non-probability convenience or purposive  
sampling of endemic fluorosis areas, as well as statistical operations that rely on randomness
for their validity e.g., hypothesis testing or linear regression . These studies, which are based 
on questionable methods, are of insufficient quality to warrant a low risk of bias rating. 

The remaining eight low level of bias  publications are various forms of analyses of the 11 
foundational studies noted above. nfortunately, the authors made no effort to validate the data 
in the 11 foundational studies, or to scrutini e the analytical methods used for the findings. 

or e ample, the initial confidence is based on comparison of the groups used. Many studies 
from high fluoride areas do not provide sufficient data to support this key criterion. 

Notwithstanding other limitations see Table 1 , these eight publications are 
in the body of evidence. 

Cui , u , hang B, Guo B, Gao T, Liu H. 2020. The relationships between thyroid-
stimulating hormone and or dopamine levels in peripheral blood and I  in children with 
different urinary iodine concentrations. Neurosci Lett. 729 1 981. 
https doi.org 10.1016 .neulet.2020.1 981

Cui , hang B, Ma , Wang , hao L, Hou C, u , hao , hang , Nie  et al. 2018. 
Dopamine receptor D2 gene polymorphism, urine fluoride, and intelligence impairment of 
children in China  A school-based cross-sectional study. Ecoto icol Environ Saf. 
165 270-277. https doi.org 10.1016 .ecoenv.2018.09.018 

Till C, Green , lora D, Hornung , Martine -Mier EA, Bla er M, armus L, Ayotte P, 
Muckle G, Lanphear B. 2020. luoride e posure from infant formula and child I  in a 
Canadian birth cohort. Environ Int. 1 105 15. 
https doi.org 10.1016 .envint.2019.105 15

Wang G, Gao M, hang M, ang M, iang . 2012. Correlation between total fluoride intake
and children s I .  Southeast niv Med Ed.7 -7 6. 

Wang M, Liu L, Li H, Li , Liu H, Hou C, eng , Li P, hao , Dong L et al. 2020b. Thyroid
function, intelligence, and low-moderate fluoride e posure among Chinese school-age 
children. Environ Int. 1 105229. https doi.org 10.1016 .envint.2019.105229
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iang , Liang , Chen B, Chen L. 2011. Analysis of children s serum fluoride levels in 
relation to intelligence scores in a high and low fluoride water village in China. luoride. 

191-19

iang , Liang , Chen L, Wang C, Chen B, Chen , hou M. 200 a. Effect of fluoride in
drinking water on children s intelligence. luoride. 6 8 -9 .  

hang S, hang , Liu H, u W, Guan , eng , iang C, Gao H, hang C, Lei  et al. 
2015b. Modifying effect of C MT gene polymorphism and a predictive role for 
proteomics analysis in children s intelligence in endemic fluorosis area in Tian in, China. 
To icol Sci. 1 2 8-2 5.  

Risk of bias. ut of the ten studies, nine used a non-probability convenience sample. nly one 
study u et al. 2018  sampled more than ten villages towns cities, which should decrease 
confidence in the body of evidence. The community-level effect was not adequately addressed 
in any of the studies. ften, the e posure measure is one or two samples of spot urinary fluoride 
with or without ad ustment for urinary dilution. This is not a valid measure of long-term fluoride 
e posure. nly one study Bashash et al. 2017  ad usted for maternal I . 

Unexplained inconsistency. Previous meta-analyses have shown substantial une plained 
heterogeneity. Duan et al. 2018 conducted a meta-analysis of standardi ed mean difference in 
I  scores between higher water fluoride communities Mean .7 mg L  and normal fluoride 
communities Mean 0.6 mg L . The summary results indicated high water fluoride e posure
was associated with lower intelligence levels standardi ed mean difference  -0.52  95  CI  -
0.62 to -0. 2  P  0.001 . However, there was substantial heterogeneity I2 69.1  P  0.001 .  
The authors were unable to e plain the source of heterogeneity. Studies conducted after 201  
show that the effect si es are smaller and not statistically significant, including Green et al. 2019 
and Bashash et al. 2017.  

There are also inconsistencies within the same study. or e ample, Green et al. 2019 the 
Maternal-Infant esearch on Environmental Chemicals study, or MI EC reported a differential 
effect such that the association between maternal urinary fluoride M  and I  was found only 
in boys. However, Till et al. 2020 stated that M  was not statistically significant either in boys 
or girls once postnatal fluoride was added to the model. armus et al. 2021 reported that 
fluoride e posures during any trimester, average across all trimesters, infancy, and childhood  
was not significantly associated with I  outcomes after city was controlled and correction for 
multiple testing was applied. While Bashash et al. 2017 reported a threshold at 0.8 mg L M  
ages 6-12 years , Thomas et al. 201  found no evidence of a detectable adverse outcome on 

offspring ages 1-  years  neurobehavioral development associated with maternal fluoride 
e posure during pregnancy. 

Imprecision. As NASEM observed in its second review , the standard errors are 
underestimated. 

f most concern are the studies that used fluoride concentration measured at the 
community level as the e posure see, for e ample, Sera  et al. 2012 , Till et al. 2020 , 
Trivedi et al. 2012 , and Wang et al. 2012 . When everyone in a community is sub ect 
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to the same e posure, the standard error of the difference in means between high-
e posure and low-e posure groups increases multiplicatively by the square root of a 
variance inflation factor I  equal to 1  n - 1 r , where n is the number of persons in 
each community and r is the correlation in outcomes such as I  score  between 
members of the same community Murray 1998  Donner and lar 2000  eng et al. 
2001 . The same phenomenon occurs in randomi ed control trials that assign treatment 
to groups of persons. Thus, unless within-community clustering is accounted for in the 
analysis for e ample, through a random effects model standard-error estimates will 
be too small and confidence intervals CIs  too narrow or individual-level e posures, 
such as urinary fluoride concentration, the I  is probably smaller than one would see 
for community level e posures because some communities might contain people in 
multiple e posure groups. However, it is still important to account for clustering in the
analysis because one would e pect most people in a community to be in the same 
e posure group.    

Please note that when the average cluster si e is large e.g., n 66 in Green et al. 2019 , even 
an interclass correlation coefficient of 0.2 will greatly impact I . 

Publication bias. There is evidence of publication bias. or e ample, the Thomas et al. 201  
thesis that showed a beneficial effect of fluoride e posure in the Early Life E posures in Me ico 
to Environmental To icants ELEMENT  is not published. Another e ample is that Green et al. 
2019 do not discuss the lack of effect of M  on SI  in their paper. armus et al. 2021 
removed the sentence, However, e posures do not significantly associate with I  outcomes 
once city is controlled and D  is applied,  which was in a pre-print from the final publication. 

As a science-based organi ation, the ADA welcomes calls for high quality research into any 
potential health effects of fluoride e posure, even at the lower levels the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention recommends for community water fluoridation 0.7 mg L . However, we 
dispute NTP s use of statements whose lack of conte t would leave a lay reader to misinterpret 
the state of the science on associations between total fluoride e posure and children s I .  

or e ample  

Associations between lower total fluoride e posure e.g., represented by populations whose 
total fluoride e posure was lower than the WH  Guidelines for Drinking-water uality of 1.5 
mg L of fluoride WH  2017  and children s I  .   

More studies are needed to fully understand lower fluoride e posure to 
affect children s I .   

More studies at lower e posure levels are needed to fully understand 
in ranges typically found in the nited States i.e., 1.5 mg L in water . 

naturally occurring fluoride served 0.59  of the .S. population 1.9 million people  CDC 
Division of ral Health 2020 .  
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This state-of-the-science document does not include the meta-analysis of epidemiological 
studies or  however, it provides 
a comprehensive and current assessment of the scientific literature on fluoride as an 
important resource to inform safe and appropriate use.  

Based on the qualitative review of these studies, the evidence of an association between 
fluoride e posure below 1.5 mg L and lower I  in children appeared less consistent than 
results of studies at higher e posure levels.

T he ma ority of the available studies in both analyses compare populations with high 
fluoride e posure to those with lower fluoride e posure with the lower e posure levels 
frequently in the range of drinking water fluoridation in the nited States . The meta-analysis
conducted in association with this systematic review further informs this issue and will be 
published separately.

This state-of-the-science document does not include the meta-analysis of epidemiological 
studies or ha ard conclusions found in previous draft monographs  however, it provides a 
comprehensive and current assessment of the scientific literature on fluoride as an 
important resource to inform safe and appropriate use.

These and other stand-alone statements could lead a lay reader to conclude that no high-quality 
research on lower level fluoride e posure e ists, or that the e isting literature is too weak for 
any conclusions to be drawn. That is not accurate. In fact, the following high quality studies 
actually refute the claim that lower level e posures impact I  levels. 

Aggeborn L, hman M. The effects of fluoride in drinking water. ournal of Political 
Economy. 2021 129 2 65- 91. doi 10.1086 711915

Do LG, Spencer A , Sawyer A, et al. Early childhood e posures to fluorides and child 
behavioural development and e ecutive function  A population-based longitudinal study. 
Accepted for publication in the ournal of Dental esearch. 

armus L, Till C, Green , et al. Critical windows of fluoride neuroto icity in Canadian 
children. . Published online 2021 111 15. 
doi 10.1016 .envres.2021.111 15

Ibarlu ea , Gallastegi M, Santa-Marina L, et al. Prenatal e posure to fluoride and 
neuropsychological development in early childhood  1-to  years old children. 
Environmental esearch. Published online ctober 2021.   

u , An N, Huang H, et al. luoride e posure and intelligence in school-age children  
evidence from different windows of e posure susceptibility. BMC Public Health. 
2020 20 1 1657-166 . 

If NTP is intent on making statements about what is known or not known about potential 
neurodevelopmental and cognitive health effects of low-level fluoride e posures, it should 

The NTP notes, NTP is aware that this study was published after April 2021 Ibarlu ea et al. 2021  and, 
therefore, is not included in this monograph because it is beyond the dates of the literature search  The 
study will be e amined as part of the NTP meta-analysis, which is being prepared as a separate report for 
publication.
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provide a complete account of the research that has been done to prevent the lay reader from 
drawing inaccurate conclusions. 

NTP should clearly state throughout the document that while it recommends further research on 
lower level fluoride e posures, which the ADA supports, the recommendations in this report are 
not nor should they be construed as an indictment of community water fluoridation at levels 
recommended by the .S. Public Health Service and the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention. NASEM recommended the same in its review of NTP s revised draft monograph

NTP did not conduct a formal dose-response assessment that could inform a discussion 
on water fluoridation. NTP needs to state clearly that the monograph is not designed to 
be informative with respect to decisions about the concentrations of fluoride that are 
used for water fluoridation. That point should be reiterated at the end of the monograph 
with some indication that the monograph  does not draw any conclusions regarding 
drinking-water fluoridation or other fluoride sources, such as toothpaste or other dental 
treatments  T he conte t into which the monograph falls calls for much more carefully 
developed and articulated communication on this issue. 

urther, any and all references to ha ard conclusions found in previous draft monographs 5

should be accompanied by a clear follow-up statement indicating why those ha ard conclusions 
were withdrawn. 

We are concerned by the possibility, or perhaps the perception, that NTP s report has not been
driven by dispassionate scientific inquiry alone. or e ample, the NTP director who 
commissioned the report coauthored an editorial implying that the unpublished second draft

was an indictment of community water fluoridation. She 
stated, fluoride is to ic to the developing brain at levels routinely found in the general 
population .6  

The NTP director s editorial was accompanied by an online video containing unsubstantiated 
claims that the practice of community water fluoridation lowers population I .7 It was produced 
by her coauthor, who was the principal investigator of the Green et al. 2019 . That study is 
heavily favored in NTP s report. The study s questionable grading is addressed in Table 1

The NTP director s coauthor also has a working relationship with the luoride Action Network 
AN , an anti-fluoridation political advocacy group.8,9,10,11,12 He was the first witness to testify 

on AN s behalf during an active lawsuit alleging the Environmental Protection Agency did not 
e ercise due diligence when reviewing a petition to ban the practice nationwide.8,1   

The udge has repeatedly delayed AN s lawsuit for two years, saying he will not issue a ruling 
until after NTP s report is released.  

We note that NTP proposed commissioning its report in 20151 -15, which is ust prior to when 
AN petitioned EPA 2016 16 and subsequently filed its lawsuit 2017 1 .

We question whether a desire to influence the AN lawsuit may be driving NTP s timeline. We 
question whether it compelled NTP to change peer reviewers multiple times. We question 
whether it led NTP to leave out critical elements, like its meta-analysis. And we question 
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whether it led NTP to publish its response to the NASEM committee s recommendations in a 
separate document  instead of including it in the report itself.5

We would welcome more transparency about whether and how these events may be 
connected. 

CDC hailed community water fluoridation as one of ten great public health achievements of the 
20th century.17-18 The Community Preventive Services Task orce reaffirmed this determination 
in 201  by updating its recommendation for water fluoridation, based on strong evidence of 
effectiveness in reducing tooth decay dental caries  across populations.19 It is a safe and 
ine pensive way to reduce tooth decay by at least 25 percent in the population.20  

It would be a shame to distract from over 75 years of public health success over a misleading 
analysis of studies conducted outside the nited States.  

Again, the ADA welcomes calls for high quality research into any potential health effects of 
fluoride e posure, even at the lower levels the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
recommends for community water fluoridation 0.7 mg L . However, we urge NIEHS to be more 
e plicit about its research design parameters for future studies.

Better design parameters would reinforce the need for investigators to acknowledge the 
limitations of their analyses e.g., convenience sampling, secondary bio-bank data analysis, 
e posure and outcome measures without validation, lack of statistical rigor, etc. . It would also 
reinforce the need for federally funded research to be an ob ective, dispassionate endeavor. 

1 National To icology Program. 2019. Draft NTP Monograph on the Systematic eview of luoride 
E posure and Neurodevelopmental and Cognitive Health Effects. ffice of Health Assessment and 
Translation, Division of the NTP, National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences, National Institutes 
of Health, .S. Department of Health and Human Services.  
2 National Academies of Sciences, Engineering, and Medicine. 2020.

 A 
Letter eport. Washington, DC  The National Academies Press.

National To icology Program. 2020. evised Draft NTP Monograph on the Systematic eview of 
luoride E posure and Neurodevelopmental and Cognitive Health Effects. ffice of Health Assessment 

and Translation, Division of the NTP, National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences, National 
Institutes of Health, .S. Department of Health and Human Services.

National Academies of Sciences, Engineering, and Medicine. 2021. 

 A Letter eport. Washington, DC  The National Academies Press.
5 National To icology Program. May 2022 Prepublication Draft . NTP Monograph on the State of the 
Science Concerning luoride E posure and Neurodevelopmental and Cognitive Health Effects  A 
Systematic eview. ffice of Health Assessment and Translation, Division of the NTP, National Institute 
of Environmental Health Sciences, National Institutes of Health, .S. Department of Health and Human 
Services.  
6 Lanphear B, Tilland C, Birnbaum L. p-ed  It is time to protect kids  developing brains from fluoride. 
Environmental Health News. ctober 7, 2020. Accessed September 9, 2022  
https www.ehn.org fluoride-and-childrens-health-26 8120286 costs-outweigh-benefits
7 Little Things Matter September 18, 2020 . The Impact of luoride on Brain Development PSA . 
Accessed September 9, 2022  https littlethingsmatter.ca 2020 09 18 fluoride
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8 luoride Action Network August 6, 2020 . TSCA luoride Trial Witnesses Spotlight PSA . 
https fluoridealert.org articles tsca-fluoride-trial-witness-spotlight
9 luoride Action Network ctober 7, 2020 . ormer Director of NIEHS Warns f Neuroto ic Harm rom 
Water luoridation Blog . https fluoridealert.org articles little-things-matter-fluoride-brain    
10 uackwatch April 9, 201 . A Critical Look at Paul Connett and his luoride Action Network Blog . 
https quackwatch.org 11ind connett
11 Healthy Debate April 22, 2020 . luoridation and the sciency  facts of critics Blog . 
https healthydebate.ca 2020 06 topic fluoridation-and-facts-of-critics
12 pen Parachute April 22, 2020 . Author confirms anti-fluoridation activist misrepresentation of her 
work Blog . https openparachute.wordpress.com 2020 0 22 author-confirms-anti-fluoridation-activist-
misrepresentation-of-her-work
1 ood  Water Watch, Inc. et al v. Environmental Protection Agency et al Docket No. 17-cv-02162  
N.D. Cal. filed Apr 18, 2017 . 

1 80  60692 ctober 7, 2015 .  
15 National To icology Program. 2015, December 1-2 . 

. esearch Triangle Park, NC  National Institute of Environmental 
Health Sciences. 
https ntp.niehs.nih.gov ntp about_ntp bsc 2015 december bsc_dec2015_minutes_508.pdf.
16 82  11878 ebruary 27, 2017 . 
17 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Ten Great Public Health Achievements -- nited States, 
1900-1999. MMW  1999  8 12  2 1-2 .
18 ivek H. Murthy, Surgeon General s Perspectives  Community Water luoridation ne of CDC s 10 
Great Public Health Achievements of the 20th Century, 2015  1 0  296-298. 
19 Community Preventive Services Task orce. 

. Atlanta, GA  .S. Dept. of Health and Human Services, 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 201 . etrieved from 
https www.thecommunityguide.org findings dental-caries-cavities-community-water-fluoridation 
September 8, 2022 . 

20 American Dental Association, , 2018. 
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Green 2019 
Till 2020

NTP rated these studies as having a low risk of bias. However, the studies rely on spot maternal urinary 
fluoride an invalid biomarker as a pro y for measuring fetal fluoride e posure. NTP also lists this as a 
prospective cohort study  however, there is only one I  measurement. There are also inconsistencies in the 
results of these two studies.  

The low risk of bias ratings are not ustified and the ratings should be downgraded.  

Green et al. (2019). Green et al. 2019, relies on an invalid biomarker spot maternal urinary fluoride as a 
pro y for measuring fetal fluoride e posure. sing an invalid biomarker alone warrants a rating of low or 
no  confidence. 

Had Green et al. 2019 assessed the validity of this biomarker, they would have found that Thomas et al. 
2016 reported lack of association between spot maternal urinary fluoride and maternal plasma fluoride in 
their multiple regression analysis. The Spearman coefficient was 0.29 in first trimester and -0.2  in third 
trimester. In fact, Thomas et al. 2016 found maternal plasma fluoride levels to be some 0 times lower than 
urinary fluoride levels. 

Also, the convenience sample in Green et al. 2019  was drawn from seven hospitals in si  cities clusters  
in Canada, creating a hierarchical data structure. The statistical analysis did not adequately take into 
account the city-level effect. I  varied by as much as 8 points between the non-fluoridated cities of 

ancouver and ingston page 0, Green 2018 Master s Thesis .  

A single staff person from each study site administered in-person I  assessments. Thus, the assessor was 
matched to the city. This would be considered a fatal flaw in any CT or case-control study.  

Additionally, the Green et al. 2019 study is not compliant with the Strengthening the eporting of 
bservational Studies in Epidemiology ST BE  research methodology, which is a best practice for 

studies of this kind. To avoid bias, or even the perception of bias, an independent, ST BE-compliant 
analysis of the MI EC and ELEMENT data is warranted.  

In its peer review of NTP s second draft, NASEM reported1   

In the case of Green et al. 2019 , NTP learned from the investigators that accounting for city-level 
clustering via a random-effects model showed similar results to the main model.  More details should 
be provided regarding the similarity of results because although overall conclusions might not have 
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From:
To:
Subject: FW: Fluoride Discussion
Date: Thursday, August 1 , 2022 : 3:3  PM

ttac me t :

FYSA—fluoride update.
Best,
Tara

From: "Iademarco, Michael (HHS/OASH)" <
Date: Thursday, August 18, 2022 at 4:40 PM
To: "Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E]" <  Tara Schwetz
<
Cc: "Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C]" <  "Calsyn, Maura (HHS/OASH)"
<  "Oh, Kathy (OS/OASH)" <  "Lee, Kinbo
(HHS/OASH)" <  "Boateng, Sarah (HHS/OASH)"
<  "States, Leith (HHS/OASH)" <  "D'Souza,
Rena (NIH/NIDCR) [E]" < , "Mitra, Jenny (HHS/OASH)"
<
Subject: RE: Fluoride Discussion
This is all good, thank you. And importantly thanks for the clarification between NTP and the NTP
BSC. I get it. Best, Michael

From: Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E] <  
Sent: Thursday, August 18, 2022 10:16 AM
To: Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E] <  Iademarco, Michael (HHS/OASH)
<
Cc: Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C] <  Calsyn, Maura (HHS/OASH)
<  Oh, Kathy (OS/OASH) <  Lee, Kinbo (HHS/OASH)
<  Boateng, Sarah (HHS/OASH) <  States, Leith
(HHS/OASH) <  D'Souza, Rena (NIH/NIDCR) [E] < ;
Mitra, Jenny (HHS/OASH) <
Subject: RE: Fluoride Discussion
Just a couple additional comments.
The National Toxicology Program is a virtual collaboration with just NCTR (FDA), NIOSH (CDC) and the
DNTP (NIEHS). The two manuscripts that are under consideration of products of this virtual
collaboration. The NTP has its own Board of Scientific Counselors (BSC), which is a FACA committee
charged specifically with overseeing the work and the products of this virtual collaboration.
Let us know if you have other questions.
I apologize for the delay in getting this moving. This is my first time through having to engage the
BSC in this type of activity, and it’s the first time that the Director of the NTP has ever engaged the
BSC in this way. It’s also complicated by the fact that Dr. Berridge has announced that he will be
stepping down as Scientific Director of our DNTP, which is responsible for generating most of the
data for the two publications.
All the best,
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Rick

From: Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E] <  
Sent: Thursday, August 18, 2022 9:48 AM
To: Iademarco, Michael (HHS/OASH) <  Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E]
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
Subject: Re: Fluoride Discussion
Michael,
Please see below (in purple) for responses to your questions. Let us know if you have further
questions.
Best,
Tara A. Schwetz, PhD (she/her)

Acting Principal Deputy Director, NIH
A: Building 1, Room 109
P:  | M: 

From: "Iademarco, Michael (HHS/OASH)" <
Date: Thursday, August 18, 2022 at 9:16 AM
To: "Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E]" <  Tara Schwetz
<  "Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E]" <
Cc: "Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C]" <  "Calsyn, Maura (HHS/OASH)"
<  "Oh, Kathy (OS/OASH)" <  "Lee, Kinbo
(HHS/OASH)" <  "Boateng, Sarah (HHS/OASH)"
<  "States, Leith (HHS/OASH)" <  "D'Souza,
Rena (NIH/NIDCR) [E]" < >, "Mitra, Jenny (HHS/OASH)"
<
Subject: RE: Fluoride Discussion
Thanks everyone. Progress. Two questions...

1. If I recall the  is a federal advisory committee. The NTP itself is an interagency program.
The NTP BSC is a FACA committee.

2. Is this subgroup of experts being formed a workgroup or a subcommittee? It will be a
working group of the NTP BSC, particularly since it will be time-limited. That is, it’s not a
standing subcommittee.

3. Will their meetings be open to the public? The WG meetings will not be public; however,
they will report out on their recommendations at a public meeting of the NTP BSC.

Best, Michael

From: Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E] <  
Sent: Wednesday, August 17, 2022 3:14 PM
To: Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E] <  Iademarco, Michael (HHS/OASH)
<  Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E] <
Cc: Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C] <  Calsyn, Maura (HHS/OASH)
<  Oh, Kathy (OS/OASH) <  Lee, Kinbo (HHS/OASH)
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<  Gray, Oneika (HHS/OASH) <  Boateng, Sarah
(HHS/OASH) <  Fisher, Megan (HHS/OASH) <
States, Leith (HHS/OASH) <  D'Souza, Rena (NIH/NIDCR) [E]
< ; Mitra, Jenny (HHS/OASH) <
Subject: RE: Fluoride Discussion
Dear RADM lademarco,
In response to the email you sent to Dr. Schwetz last Tuesday (see below), I am sending you a
summary of where we stand relative to the WG to evaluate the two fluoride documents. I am also
attaching a copy of the memo that I sent to you and the other key stakeholders across HHS last June
which highlighted the “charge” to the WG.
Please let us know if you have any questions.
All the best,
Tara and Rick
Update on NTP Fluoride Study Activities
NIEHS Board of Scientific Counselors (BSC) Working Group Development—Completed Steps
NIEHS worked with Dr. Eaton, NTP BSC Chair, to develop a process to create a working group
of the outside experts to review the NTP fluoride documents.

Initial screening of the 20 Nominees received from stakeholder agencies identified
information about each person including affiliation, position, research topics, areas of
expertise from websites, LinkedIn, etc.
Each person was then evaluated for their participation/affiliation with fluoride activities
(NASEM panel, fluoride-related publications, webinars/symposia, public comments to
NASEM).
Dr. Eaton identified 6 possible candidates and then conducted an in-depth COI screening
via Lexis/Nexis (news articles and networks), SCOPUS (2019-2022, looked at topic, cross-
checked collaborators with other potential WG members and persons involved with NTP
fluoride project), Google (podcast topics, news articles, opinion pieces, etc.).
From this group, 5 persons were best qualified without any COIs.

Thus far, Dr. Eaton and NIEHS has held these confidential interviews by zoom with all 5
individuals. WG candidates were told about the WG activity including charge, timeline, SoS
and meta-analysis documents, honorarium, expertise areas needed, WG’s product, BSC
meeting, etc. All 5 are willing to continue with the process.
NIEHS BSC Working Group Development—Ongoing Steps
Dr. Eaton and NIEHS leadership will review all of the details relating to the qualifications and
COIs for the nominated candidates during the last week of August in preparation for an HHS
stakeholder meeting. NIEHS is scheduling this meeting for early September when the HHS
stakeholders are all available.
Following the meeting with the HHS stakeholder group, a COI screening package will be sent
to persons who are interested and qualified in participating on the WG. The package will
identify the chemical and topic of the systematic review/meta-analysis and will ask for
standard information (e.g., CV, COI form, anti-lobbying form) and ask about relationships with
listed staff who have been involved in development/review of the two documents.
NIEHS BSC Working Group Development—Next Steps
Materials [e.g., CV, COI form, search results (i.e., Lexis/Nexis, SCOPUS, Google)] will be shared
with Dr. Eaton and NIEHS leadership for their approval of the WG membership.
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The goal is to have the COI screening and have the proposed BSC WG identified by Aug 31. In
early September, at a time when the HHS stakeholders are available, the stakeholder group
will be convened to provide detailed reasoning for the choice of the WG members and to
confirm the next steps. Then, Dr. Eaton will officially charge the working group (see attached
document that Dr. Woychik shared with the stakeholder group last June, which includes the
language describing the charge). Of note, this is not meant to be a thorough peer review of
both manuscripts, but rather will be a focused effort of the working group dedicated to be: a)
primarily an adjudication of the written comments from key stakeholders (e.g., NIDCR, NIH-
OD, FDA, CDC, and OASH), b) secondarily to provide any additional insights into the quality of
the work, including whether strength of the underlying data was appropriately and thoroughly
assessed.
The WG will meet as necessary to consider the elements of the charge, and then will make
recommendations to the NTP BSC, which will then conduct a public session to review the
recommendations from the WG. The Chair of the NTP BSC will then make recommendations
to Dr. Woychik, who will decide how to proceed with the two publications after meeting with
the HHS stakeholder group, including the ASH.

From: Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E] <  
Sent: Tuesday, August 9, 2022 11:51 PM
To: Iademarco, Michael (HHS/OASH) <
Cc: Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C] <  Calsyn, Maura (HHS/OASH)
<  Oh, Kathy (OS/OASH) <  Lee, Kinbo (HHS/OASH)
<  Gray, Oneika (HHS/OASH) <  Boateng, Sarah
(HHS/OASH) <  Fisher, Megan (HHS/OASH) <
Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E] <  States, Leith (HHS/OASH)
<  D'Souza, Rena (NIH/NIDCR) [E] < ; Mitra, Jenny
(HHS/OASH) <
Subject: Re: Fluoride Discussion
Michael,
You read my mind! I was actually in NC today, visiting the NIEHS campus, and Rick and I discussed
providing an update soon. We’ll get something together and get it to you next week.
Best,
Tara A. Schwetz, PhD (she/her)

Acting Principal Deputy Director, NIH
A: Building 1, Room 109
P:  | M: 

From: "Iademarco, Michael (HHS/OASH)" <
Date: Tuesday, August 9, 2022 at 2:53 PM
To: Tara Schwetz <
Cc: "Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C]" <  "Calsyn, Maura (HHS/OASH)"
<  "Oh, Kathy (OS/OASH)" <  "Lee, Kinbo
(HHS/OASH)" <  "Gray, Oneika (HHS/OASH)" <
"Boateng, Sarah (HHS/OASH)" <  "Fisher, Megan (HHS/OASH)"
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<  "Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E]" <  "States,
Leith (HHS/OASH)" <  "D'Souza, Rena (NIH/NIDCR) [E]"
< , "Mitra, Jenny (HHS/OASH)" <
Subject: RE: Fluoride Discussion
Tara, I’d like to provide a brief update summary to ADM Levine in the next week or so. Could you
help facilitate? Best, Michael

From: D'Souza, Rena (NIH/NIDCR) [E] <  
Sent: Wednesday, June 29, 2022 6:08 AM
To: Levine, Rachel (HHS/OASH) <  Iademarco, Michael (HHS/OASH)
<  Boateng, Sarah (HHS/OASH) <
Cc: Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C] <  Calsyn, Maura (HHS/OASH)
<  Handley, Elisabeth (OS/OASH) <  Oh, Kathy
(OS/OASH) <  Lee, Kinbo (HHS/OASH) <  Gray, Oneika
(HHS/OASH) <  Fisher, Megan (HHS/OASH) <
Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E] <  Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E]
<  States, Leith (HHS/OASH) <
Subject: Re: Fluoride Discussion

Rena N. D’Souza, D.D.S., M.S., Ph.D.,
Director,
National Institute of Dental and Craniofacial Research/NIH
31 Center Drive, MSC 2290 Building 31C, Suite 2C39
Chief,
Section on Molecules & Therapies for Craniofacial & Dental Disorders
National Institute of Child Health and Human Development
National Institutes of Health
Bethesda, Maryland 20892
Email: 
Phone: 
Cell: 

From: Levine, Rachel (HHS/OASH) <
Date: Tuesday, June 28, 2022 at 8:15 PM
To: Iademarco, Michael (HHS/OASH) <  Boateng, Sarah
(HHS/OASH) <
Cc: Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C] <  Calsyn, Maura (HHS/OASH)
<  Handley, Elisabeth (OS/OASH) <  Oh,
Kathy (OS/OASH) <  Lee, Kinbo (HHS/OASH) <  Gray,
Oneika (HHS/OASH) <  Fisher, Megan (HHS/OASH)
<  Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E] <  D'Souza,
Rena (NIH/NIDCR) [E] < , Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E]
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<  States, Leith (HHS/OASH) <
Subject: RE: Fluoride Discussion

RADM Iademarco, Sounds good, Thanks, RLL

From: Iademarco, Michael (HHS/OASH) <  
Sent: Tuesday, June 28, 2022 3:26 PM
To: Levine, Rachel (HHS/OASH) <  Boateng, Sarah (HHS/OASH)
<
Cc: Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C] <  Calsyn, Maura (HHS/OASH)
<  Handley, Elisabeth (OS/OASH) <  Oh, Kathy
(OS/OASH) <  Lee, Kinbo (HHS/OASH) <  Gray, Oneika
(HHS/OASH) <  Fisher, Megan (HHS/OASH) <
Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E] <  D'Souza, Rena (NIH/NIDCR) [E]
< ; Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E] <  States, Leith
(HHS/OASH) <
Subject: RE: Fluoride Discussion
ADM Levine, Attached is a meeting summary that Tara and I worked out, just to capture the
approach. Anyone copied, should let me know if there are any concerns. Based on communications
with the NIH, these steps are underway. V/r, Michael
-----Original Appointment-----
From: Levine, Rachel (HHS/OASH) <  
Sent: Thursday, June 2, 2022 8:02 PM
To: Levine, Rachel (HHS/OASH); Levine, Rachel (HHS/OASH); Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]; D'Souza,
Rena (NIH/NIDCR) [E]; Woychik, Rick (NIH/NIEHS) [E]; Iademarco, Michael (HHS/OASH); Boateng,
Sarah (HHS/OASH)
Cc: Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C]; Calsyn, Maura (HHS/OASH); Handley, Elisabeth (OS/OASH); Oh, Kathy
(OS/OASH); Cure, Kelly (OS/OASH) (CTR); Lee, Kinbo (HHS/OASH); Gray, Oneika (HHS/OASH); Fisher,
Megan (HHS/OASH)
Subject: Fluoride Discussion 
When: Monday, June 6, 2022 5:30 PM-6:00 PM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).
Where: 

ADM Rachel Levine is inviting you to a scheduled ZoomGov meeting.
Join ZoomGov Meeting

Meeting ID: 
Passcode: 
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One tap mobile
+  US (San Jose)
+  US (New York)
Dial by your location
+  US (San Jose)
+  US (New York)
+  US (San Jose)
+  US
Meeting ID: 
Find your local number: 
Join by SIP

Join by H.323
 (US West)
 (US East)

Meeting ID: 
Passcode: 
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From: NIH E ecutive Secretariat
To: Matthew rooks
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Potential cures
Date: Monday, July 11, 2022 3: 2:  PM

ttac me t : image001 pg

Dear Mr. Brooks,
 
Thank you for your emails to Dr. Lawrence Tabak, Acting Director of the National Institutes of Health
(NIH). Your email has been provided to the appropriate NIH offices for their review and
consideration. Due to the press of agency business, it is not possible for NIH to respond to every
inquiry. NIH staff may contact you should they wish to discuss further.
 
Thank you for your continued support of NIH.
 
NIH Executive Secretariat
www.nih.gov

 

From: Matthew Brooks <  
Sent: Friday, July 8, 2022 9:28 PM
To: Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E] <
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Potential cures
 
Good evening Dr. Tabak,
 
Thank you for all your hard work at the NIH.  I know your schedule keeps you busy, so I'll keep this as short as
possible.
 
My name's Matthew Brooks.  I recently discovered what may be  a potential cure for cancer: c=sodium hydroxide
Fluoride.  I also came up with what may be a potential cure to HIV/AIDS (e.g. sodium fluoride), Covid (e.g. sodium
benzoate or sodium benzoate pentachloraide phosphide), and Bipolar (e.g. bicadium).
 
I know this may seem odd to send this to you, but I wanted to let someone of your position know about it before
letting it go and thinking little of it.  Let me know your thoughts on it when you have a moment.
 
Thanks again For. Tabak.
 
Matthew R. Brooks

Ph: 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and are confident the content is safe.
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CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and are confident the content is safe.
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From: Matthew rooks
To: Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Potential cures
Date: Friday, July , 2022 :2 :31 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and are confident the content is safe.
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From: urklow, John (NIH/OD) [E]
To: Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]; Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]
Subject: NTP briefing for the ASH
Date: Thursday, June 30, 2022 5:1 :3  PM

Hi, Larry, Tara—
Just to report that the NTP briefing on data sharing with the ASH went very well. Rick’s team did a
great job. As always, she was fully engaged, asked good questions (about data security and legal
aspects), and was very complimentary and supportive.
Best,
John



From: McManus, Ayanna (NIH/OD) [E]
To: Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]; Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]

c: Chao, rittany (NIH/OD) [E]; LAT-Homework Meeting; Aklin, Courtney (NIH/OD) [E]; urrus-Shaw, Cyndi
(NIH/OD) [E]; Dzokoto-Pomenya, Caroline (NIH/OD) [E]; Landis, Erica (NIH/OD) [E]; Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C];
urklow, John (NIH/OD) [E]; Walsh, Elizabeth (NIH/OD) [E]

Subject: RE: LAT homework June 2
Date: Monday, June 2 , 2022 3:1 :  PM

Comments below in purple.
Thanks,
Ayanna

From: Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E] <  
Sent: Saturday, June 25, 2022 2:08 PM
To: Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E] <
Cc: Chao, Brittany (NIH/OD) [E] <  LAT-Homework Meeting <

; Aklin, Courtney (NIH/OD) [E] <  Burrus-
Shaw, Cyndi (NIH/OD) [E] <  Dzokoto-Pomenya, Caroline (NIH/OD) [E]
<  Landis, Erica (NIH/OD) [E] <
McManus, Ayanna (NIH/OD) [E] <  Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C]
<  Burklow, John (NIH/OD) [E] <  Walsh, Elizabeth
(NIH/OD) [E] <
Subject: Re: LAT homework June 24
Replies in orange please.
Thanks
Larry

From: "Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]" <
Date: Saturday, June 25, 2022 at 1:51 PM
To: "Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]" <
Cc: "Chao, Brittany (NIH/OD) [E]" <  LAT-Homework Meeting <

, "Aklin, Courtney (NIH/OD) [E]" <
"Burrus-Shaw, Cyndi (NIH/OD) [E]" <  "Dzokoto-Pomenya,
Caroline (NIH/OD) [E]" <  "Landis, Erica (NIH/OD) [E]"
<  "McManus, Ayanna (NIH/OD) [E]" <
"Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C]" <  "Burklow, John (NIH/OD) [E]"
<  "Walsh, Elizabeth (NIH/OD) [E]" <
Subject: Re: LAT homework June 24
See below in bold, underlined, italics.
Best,

Tara A. Schwetz, PhD
National Institutes of Health

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 25, 2022, at 1:17 PM, Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]
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<  wrote:

Thanks for putting everything together. Comments in red.
Please take time to enjoy the weekend.
Larry

From: "Chao, Brittany (NIH/OD) [E]" <
Date: Friday, June 24, 2022 at 9:01 PM
To: LAT-Homework Meeting <  "Tabak,
Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]" <
Cc: "Aklin, Courtney (NIH/OD) [E]" <  "Burrus-Shaw,
Cyndi (NIH/OD) [E]" <  "Dzokoto-Pomenya, Caroline
(NIH/OD) [E]" <  "Landis, Erica (NIH/OD) [E]"
<  "McManus, Ayanna (NIH/OD) [E]"
<  "Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C]" <
"Burklow, John (NIH/OD) [E]" <  "Walsh, Elizabeth (NIH/OD)
[E]" <  "Chao, Brittany (NIH/OD) [E]"
<  "Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]" <
Subject: LAT homework June 24
Hi Larry – please find your HW attachments/references enclosed (hyperlinked from the
Sharepoint folder):
Staff Meeting Agenda

6/27 Overdose Prevention Strategy Implementation Update Pre-Brief

This meeting is confirmed; however, we can decline your participation if you will 
not participate in the Overdoes Prevention Strategy meeting on 6/28. 

(LAT): Please ask Wilson to represent NIH during the meeting on 6/28;
therefore, I will not participate in the 6/27 meeting either

Who will cover the 6/30 bimonthly ASH Briefing on NTP? – Tara is leading
Microstaff meeting at that time, so I will cover ASH briefing on NTP. I’ll be on
leave, but it looks like it was cancelled on my calendar. Could we confirm
please if this meeting is taking place, or not – thanks. The meeting is
confirmed.

SC/ICD Meeting At a glance

Let’s discuss at catch up please
COVID-19 Updates
For Review/Action

Talking points and briefer for the NIH DEIA Town Hall next Wednesday (with dry
run on Monday)—Review – looks fine; thanks

Renate and Shelma Little have reviewed the TPs
2-pager HEAL AI/AN Initiative Planning efforts—Review – this seems fine. I
would hope we could at launch the Coordinating Center in 2022 to get
optimal opportunity for groups to compete in 2023.
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Developed in collaboration with HEAL, NINDS and NIDA as initial first steps
to respond to what was heard during the HEAL Tribal Consultation this
spring.
HEAL can provide you additional details or a short briefing if desired to
hear more from Kathy Etz, Jess Mazerik and Erin Spaniol who have been
developing these concepts. Would be great to hear more about future
plans; please set up a briefing for that purpose I have heard from
multiple ppl that this process was rather difficult Ok – good to know
that; all the more reason to meet for awareness

Response to Dr. Robert Hanson—Review/send - sent

OIR/NIDDK prepared a draft response that was reviewed by OGC (also
attached) in response to an email from Dr. Robert Hanson
You indicated that the response should come from you, so Exec Sec
wanted to follow up to see if you have sent it or would like them to send it
on your behalf.

Blog packet 476: responded by separate email.

NIDDK-STEP-UP-South Pacific - Select a headline and tweet. The post has
been cleared through NIDDK.
Director’s Blog Topics – Please choose a news post and tweets for next
week.

FYI/Admin

N/A
Best,
Team Tabak



From: Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]
To: Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]

c: Chao, rittany (NIH/OD) [E]; LAT-Homework Meeting; Aklin, Courtney (NIH/OD) [E]; urrus-Shaw, Cyndi
(NIH/OD) [E]; Dzokoto-Pomenya, Caroline (NIH/OD) [E]; Landis, Erica (NIH/OD) [E]; McManus, Ayanna
(NIH/OD) [E]; Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C]; urklow, John (NIH/OD) [E]; Walsh, Elizabeth (NIH/OD) [E]

Subject: Re: LAT homework June 2
Date: Saturday, June 25, 2022 2:0 :5  PM

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
please if this meeting is taking place, or not - thanks

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



From: Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]
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
Date: Saturday, June 25, 2022 1:51:  PM

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
leave, but it looks like it was cancelled on my calendar.

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
multiple ppl that this process was rather difficult

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
To: Chao, rittany (NIH/OD) [E]; LAT-Homework Meeting

c: Aklin, Courtney (NIH/OD) [E]; urrus-Shaw, Cyndi (NIH/OD) [E]; Dzokoto-Pomenya, Caroline (NIH/OD) [E];
Landis, Erica (NIH/OD) [E]; McManus, Ayanna (NIH/OD) [E]; Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C]; urklow, John
(NIH/OD) [E]; Walsh, Elizabeth (NIH/OD) [E]; Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]

Subject: Re: LAT homework June 2
Date: Saturday, June 25, 2022 1:1 :0  PM

Thanks for putting everything together. Comments in red.
Please take time to enjoy the weekend.
Larry

From: "Chao, Brittany (NIH/OD) [E]" <
Date: Friday, June 24, 2022 at 9:01 PM
To: LAT-Homework Meeting <  "Tabak, Lawrence
(NIH/OD) [E]" <
Cc: "Aklin, Courtney (NIH/OD) [E]" <  "Burrus-Shaw, Cyndi (NIH/OD)
[E]" <  "Dzokoto-Pomenya, Caroline (NIH/OD) [E]"
<  "Landis, Erica (NIH/OD) [E]" <
"McManus, Ayanna (NIH/OD) [E]" <  "Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C]"
<  "Burklow, John (NIH/OD) [E]" <  "Walsh,
Elizabeth (NIH/OD) [E]" <  "Chao, Brittany (NIH/OD) [E]"
<  "Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]" <
Subject: LAT homework June 24
Hi Larry – please find your HW attachments/references enclosed (hyperlinked from the Sharepoint
folder):
Staff Meeting Agenda

6/27 Overdose Prevention Strategy Implementation Update Pre-Brief

This meeting is confirmed; however, we can decline your participation if you will not 
participate in the Overdoes Prevention Strategy meeting on 6/28. 

(LAT): Please ask Wilson to represent NIH during the meeting on 6/28; therefore, I will not
participate in the 6/27 meeting either

Who will cover the 6/30 bimonthly ASH Briefing on NTP? – Tara is leading Microstaff meeting
at that time, so I will cover ASH briefing on NTP.

SC/ICD Meeting At a glance

Let’s discuss at catch up please
COVID-19 Updates
For Review/Action

Talking points and briefer for the NIH DEIA Town Hall next Wednesday (with dry run on
Monday)—Review – looks fine; thanks

Renate and Shelma Little have reviewed the TPs
2-pager HEAL AI/AN Initiative Planning efforts—Review – this seems fine. I would hope
we could at launch the Coordinating Center in 2022 to get optimal opportunity for
groups to compete in 2023.
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(b) (6)
(b) (6) (b) (6)

(b) (6)
(b) (6) (b) (6)



Developed in collaboration with HEAL, NINDS and NIDA as initial first steps to respond
to what was heard during the HEAL Tribal Consultation this spring.
HEAL can provide you additional details or a short briefing if desired to hear more from
Kathy Etz, Jess Mazerik and Erin Spaniol who have been developing these concepts.
Would be great to hear more about future plans; please set up a briefing for that
purpose

Response to Dr. Robert Hanson—Review/send - sent
OIR/NIDDK prepared a draft response that was reviewed by OGC (also attached) in
response to an email from Dr. Robert Hanson
You indicated that the response should come from you, so Exec Sec wanted to follow
up to see if you have sent it or would like them to send it on your behalf.

Blog packet 476: responded by separate email.
NIDDK-STEP-UP-South Pacific - Select a headline and tweet. The post has been cleared
through NIDDK.
Director’s Blog Topics – Please choose a news post and tweets for next week.

FYI/Admin

N/A
Best,
Team Tabak



From: Hallett, Adrienne (NIH/OD) [E]
To: Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]
Subject: Flouridation questions
Date: Tuesday, May 1 , 2022 :2 :21 PM

1. It is my understanding that the line of peer review for this kind of publication would typically
continue with the National Academies of Sciences, Engineering and Medicine. Did NTP run the
state-of-science report through NASEM, and if not, why not?

2. Have CDC, NIDCR, and/or NICHD expressed any concerns about the presentation of the
findings? Do they agree that the findings are being presented in a responsible and
scientifically accurate way? If concerns have been raised, what are they and what has NTP
done to address those concerns?

3. What are NTP’s plans to make it clear, even to a lay person, that this report will not be an
indictment of community water fluoridation and should not be used to influence debates
about the practice?

4. How many individuals in the U.S., including pregnant women and young children, are
consistently exposed to unusually high fluoride concentrations ( 1.5 mg/L) for prolonged
periods every year? How does the report clearly distinguish the potential risk to those
individuals from those receiving community water fluoridation?



From: Chao, rittany (NIH/OD) [E]
To: Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]; Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]; McManus, Ayanna (NIH/OD) [E]

c: LAT-Homework Meeting; Aklin, Courtney (NIH/OD) [E]; urrus-Shaw, Cyndi (NIH/OD) [E]; Dzokoto-Pomenya,
Caroline (NIH/OD) [E]; Landis, Erica (NIH/OD) [E]; Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C]; urklow, John (NIH/OD) [E];
Walsh, Elizabeth (NIH/OD) [E]

Subject: Re: LAT homework May 2
Date: Tuesday, May 31, 2022 :05:02 AM

ttac me t : image001 png

Hi all,
Please see comments in blue.
Best.
Brittany

From: "Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]" <
Date: Monday, May 30, 2022 at 10:45 PM
To: "Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]" <  "McManus, Ayanna (NIH/OD)
[E]" <
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
<  "Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C]" <  "Burklow, John
(NIH/OD) [E]" <  "Walsh, Elizabeth (NIH/OD) [E]"
<
Subject: Re: LAT homework May 27
Larry,
I think the NTP thing is OK for now, but I’m still going back and forth on this with Rick and also still
going through my email.
Best,
Tara A. Schwetz, PhD (she/her)

Acting Principal Deputy Director, NIH
A: Building 1, Room 109
P: 

Executive Assistant: Caroline Dzokoto-Pomenya (
Scheduler: Dina Simon 

From: Larry Tabak <
Date: Monday, May 30, 2022 at 6:50 AM
To: "McManus, Ayanna (NIH/OD) [E]" <  Tara Schwetz
<
Cc: "Chao, Brittany (NIH/OD) [E]" <  LAT-Homework Meeting <

, "Aklin, Courtney (NIH/OD) [E]" <
Cyndi Burrus-Shaw <  "Dzokoto-Pomenya, Caroline (NIH/OD) [E]"

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
comments in orange.
thanks
Larry

From: "McManus, Ayanna (NIH/OD) [E]" <
Date: Sunday, May 29, 2022 at 9:23 PM
To: "Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]" <  "Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]"
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
Subject: RE: LAT homework May 27
Comments in purple.
Thanks,
Ayanna

From: Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E] <  
Sent: Sunday, May 29, 2022 5:01 PM
To: Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E] <
Cc: Chao, Brittany (NIH/OD) [E] <  LAT-Homework Meeting <

 Aklin, Courtney (NIH/OD) [E] <  Burrus-
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
All,
See below in bold italics.
Best,

Tara A. Schwetz, PhD
National Institutes of Health

Sent from my iPad

On May 28, 2022, at 2:03 PM, Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]
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<  wrote:

Thanks for assembling this. Comments in red.
Hope you are all enjoying the holiday weekend.
Larry

From: "Chao, Brittany (NIH/OD) [E]" <
Date: Friday, May 27, 2022 at 5:58 PM
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
Subject: LAT homework May 27
Hi Larry – please find your HW attachments/references enclosed (hyperlinked from the
Sharepoint folder):
Staff Meeting Agenda

Topics for our meeting with DepSec (5/31)

March In
Timing on WIV termination//reinstatement
Royalties
Fluoride – is this still needed?

Is the ASH briefing on Fluoride on 6/1 – Tara, should I join or do you prefer that I
do not since you have been working directly with Rick? There’s a slide set and
some emails that I haven’t had a chance to really look at yet. Will do so later
this evening (once we get back) or tomorrow and will let you know. ok, thanks
– let me know.
What am I doing at OD Return to Work Town Hall? Based on a previous
discussion, we hadn’t slotted you in for a role. If you would like to participate
(opening remarks?), let us know. no, not necessary. thanks.
Wednesday 6/8 – Nina Schor is certainly welcome to join when the Taiwan
delegation visits. Brittany will also join. Ok, thanks
Unless the new NIH director has just arrived (not likely given the timing) I plan to

be on annual leave from August 23rd through Friday August 26th (but will be
reachable throughout – we will be driving to Cleveland to visit the Melvins) FYI—
looking like I will be in South Korea for a presentation on 8/31 and a meeting
on 9/1. Because of timing and duration of flights, it pretty much knocks out
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the whole week for me. ok, since we are driving I can remain in contact the
entire time

No ICD/SC meeting on Thur August 25th (most people will be on leave) Ok
TFC would like to plan a 30-minute virtual meeting to further discuss T42(f)
workforce diversity positions. Who should participate? LAT or TAS?

Sorry, who/what is TFC? Is this supposed to be ETFC? Yes, this should
have been ETFC I will participate. Tara is welcome to join if she wishes
to.

Ok to schedule the NIH-Gates Foundation annual joint workshop on
December 6 or 7? ACD is December 8 – 9. Recognizing that LAT (or the next
Director) would need time to prepare for ACD, December 7 seems
problematic. Are you comfortable with scheduling the workshop for
December 6?

Please proceed with scheduling this on the 6th – I assume this is virtual.
This will be a face-to-face meeting on campus
The Gates Foundation has proposed these dates (12/6 – 12/9) based on
Bill’s limited availability. From Rob Eiss: if we did offer December 6, it
could be with the caveat that Dr. Tabak would only be available for the
morning part of the meeting, and he would delegate a senior NIH
colleague to take his place in the afternoon (for example, if Dr. Fauci might
be available).
Let’s decide if we need someone to pinch hit in PM, as we get closer to
the date Confirmation of virtual vs. in person would be helpful. This will
be a face-to-face meeting on campus Ok, let’s proceed, but as we get
closer we can make decisions about availability.

SC/ICD Meeting At a glance

Let’s discuss at catch up please [NOTE: I have not reviewed yet]
COVID-19 Updates
For Review/Action

Preliminary slide proposal for the June 14 APLU Council of 1890s Universities talk
(also attached)—Review

These will revised for format, but Speeches would like to get your
feedback on what content to include

We should include a few slides on the HBCU contract effort (see
TPs attached from event that I did in March). Ok, will do.
Also could we update the slide deck in the third attachment so I
can use some of these slides? We receive very few applications for
R01s from HBCUs – this is a vicious cycle – if you don’t apply you
don’t get the great. Also, persistence matters and they are not



taking advantage of that- in part due to under resourcing, and so
faculty don’t have the chance to reapply. I need a slide about
second submissions versus first (HBCUs versus other organizations).
Sure, we will work on updating these.

AcademyHealth briefer—Review
The organizers wanted to know if you will you need parking? And
would you like to bring along someone to staff you? I will take Metro
– need to know closest metro stop please. There is no need for
anyone else to disrupt their weekend. Ok, I will find out the closest
metro.
The organizers are going to send a framing question and some topics
the week of 5/30. Speeches and I will work on some TPs once we
receive those. It sounds like the major focus will be around DEIA and
recruiting/maintaining a diverse workforce.

CCRHB minutes (also attached)—Review/Edit. – approved/attached.
If no edits, sign on page 23 digitally.
Drs. Schwetz and Gilman have already approved

FYI/Admin

N/A
Have a nice long weekend!
Best,
Team Tabak



From: Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]
To: McManus, Ayanna (NIH/OD) [E]; Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]

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
Date: Monday, May 30, 2022 :50:2  AM

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

No ICD/SC meeting on Thur August 25th (most people will be on leave)
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
TPs attached from event that I did in March).
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
anyone else to disrupt their weekend.
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
To: Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]; Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]

c: Chao, rittany (NIH/OD) [E]; LAT-Homework Meeting; Aklin, Courtney (NIH/OD) [E]; urrus-Shaw, Cyndi
(NIH/OD) [E]; Dzokoto-Pomenya, Caroline (NIH/OD) [E]; Landis, Erica (NIH/OD) [E]; Simon, Dina (NIH/OD) [C];
urklow, John (NIH/OD) [E]; Walsh, Elizabeth (NIH/OD) [E]

Subject: RE: LAT homework May 2
Date: Sunday, May 2 , 2022 :2 :00 PM

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
this evening (once we get back) or tomorrow and will let you know.
What am I doing at OD Return to Work Town Hall? Based on a previous
discussion, we hadn’t slotted you in for a role. If you would like to participate
(opening remarks?), let us know.
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
the whole week for me.

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
have been ETFC

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
be a face-to-face meeting on campus

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
Date: Sunday, May 2 , 2022 5:02:5  PM

ttac me t : CCRH  2022 0 01 Meeting Summary pdated 05 2 22[1] pdf
H C  TPs doc
H C  funding trends ppt

bold italics

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
delegation visits. Brittany will also join.
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

Sorry, who/what is TFC? Is this supposed to be ETFC?
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
the date Confirmation of virtual vs. in person would be helpful.

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


